
There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Jane Webb on 01733 452281 as soon as possible.

AB
PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 14 MARCH 2017
1.30 PM

Bourges/Viersen Rooms - Town Hall

AGENDA
Page No

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest

At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council. 

3. Members' Declaration of intention to make representations as Ward 
Councillor

4. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 24 January 2017 5 - 12

5. Development Control and Enforcement Matters

5.1 17/00003/HHFUL - 2 Cowper Road, New England, 
Peterborough, PE1 3JX

13 - 20

5.2 17/00228/HHFUL - 61 Taverners Road, Millfield, Peterborough, 
PE1 2JP

21 - 26

5.3 17/00229/HHFUL - 59 Taverners Road, Millfield, Peterborough, 
PE1 2JP

27 - 32

6. PLANNING APPEALS QUARTERLY REPORT ON PERFORMANCE 
DECEMBER 2016 TO FEBRUARY 2017

33 - 38

Public Document Pack



Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take photographs and use 
social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is 
available at: 

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recor
ding&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385

Committee Members:

Councillors: C Harper (Chairman), L Serluca (Vice Chairman), Bull, G Casey, P Hiller, J Stokes, 
S Martin, Sylvester, Bond, Clark and C Ash

Substitutes: Councillors: Bisby, Iqbal, N Sandford and B Saltmarsh

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Jane Webb on telephone 01733 
452281 or by email – jane.webb@peterborough.gov.uk

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385


CASE OFFICERS:

Planning and Development Team: Nicholas Harding, Lee Collins, Paul Smith, Mike Roberts, 
Janet Maclennan, David Jolley, Louise Lovegrove, Vicky 
Hurrell, Sundas Shaban, Amanda McSherry, Sam Falco, Matt 
Thomson, Michael Freeman, Jack Gandy

Minerals and Waste: Theresa Nicholl, Alan Jones

Compliance: Nigel Barnes, Anthony Whittle, Karen Cole, Julie Robshaw

NOTES:

1. Any queries on completeness or accuracy of reports should be raised with the Case Officer 
or Head of Planning, Transport and Engineering Services as soon as possible.

2. The purpose of location plans is to assist Members in identifying the location of the site.  
Location plans may not be up-to-date, and may not always show the proposed development.  

3. These reports take into account the Council's equal opportunities policy but have no 
implications for that policy, except where expressly stated.

4. The background papers for planning applications are the application file plus any documents 
specifically referred to in the report itself.

5. These reports may be updated orally at the meeting if additional relevant information is 
received after their preparation.



This page is intentionally left blank



AB
    MINUTES OF THE PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE 

HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH ON 24 JANUARY 2017

Members Present: Councillors Harper (Chairman), Serluca (Vice Chairman), Bond, Bull, 
Casey, Hiller, Stokes, Martin, Sylvester, Clark, and Ash

Officers Present:  Lee Collins, Development Management Manager
Tim Driver, Planning and Highways Lawyer
Vicky Hurrell, Principal Development Management Officer
Simon Ireland, Principal Engineer (Highways)
Jane Webb, Senior Democratic Services Officer

1. Apologies for Absence

There were no apologies for absence received.

2. Declarations of Interest

Councillor Clark, declared that in relation to agenda item 5.1 ‘Golden Lion, 5-7 
Church Street, Stanground, Peterborough’, he was Ward Councillor for the area and 
felt it appropriate that he did not take part in the discussions or voting thereon and 
therefore would leave the room for the item.

Councillor Harper, declared that in relation to agenda item 5.3 ‘Car Park, Hampton 
Court, Westwood, Peterborough’, he had close relatives living nearby the site and felt 
it appropriate that he did not take part in the discussions or voting thereon and would 
therefore leave the room for the item.

3.    Members’ Declaration of intention to make representations as Ward Councillor

No Members’ declaration of intention to make representations as Ward Councillors 
were received.

4.    Minutes of the Meeting Held on 29 November 2016

The minutes of the meeting held on 29 November 2017 were approved as a correct 
record.

5. Development Control and Enforcement Matters

5.1 16/01498/FUL - Golden Lion 5 - 7 Church Street, Stanground, Peterborough

The Committee was presented with an application for the demolition of an existing 
public house to be replaced by a ground floor retail unit and four residential flats (3 x 
1-bed and 1 x 2-bed) at first floor.

The Development Management Manager provided an overview of the application and 
highlighted a number of key issues within the report and update report.

5



 It was important to consider what the site could potentially be turned into 
without the need for planning permission as it was permitted development 
(the “fall-back position”).  A supermarket twice the size of the current 
application could be opened.  Officers therefore considered the application 
acceptable.

 Highways had objected to the new access.
 It was important to have regard to the fall-back position; the proposal 

represented a decrease in parking places but would be worse under the fall-
back position and therefore Officers recommended approval subject to the 
conditions stated within the report.

Nick Thulborn, a local resident, addressed the Committee in objection to the 
application and responded to questions from Members.  In summary the key points 
highlighted included:

 This application would result in a shortage of parking.
 This was the main access into the village and was not adequate for increased 

traffic and larger vehicles.
 Both residents and business owners had worked together to ensure the 

access was kept open.
 Traffic had increased to dangerous levels with 27 incidents recorded in the 

last 2 months.
 Residents were concerned with the air quality in the area.

David Smith, Agent, addressed the Committee in support of the application and 
responded to questions from Members.  In summary the key points highlighted 
included:

 The site was currently unused and did not contribute to the area.
 It could be converted to retail use, larger than the proposed, without the need 

for planning approval.  This would generate more parking, traffic and 
deliveries.

 The applicant was a committed local business man who wished to invest 
significantly into the neighbourhood.

 The site would become an attractive convenience store with flats.
 A pre-application had been submitted in September and conversations had 

taken place with planners which resulted in amendments being made to the 
application before submission.

 Highways had raised objections and therefore further amendments had been 
made to the delivery, access, parking and a reduction in size of the shop and 
dwellings.  There was a fall-back position but the concerns of Highways had 
been addressed with amendments being made to the proposal to 
accommodate those concerns.

In response to questions from the Committee  The Planning and Highways Lawyer 
advised that due regard should be given to air quality standards as these applied 
nationally, adding that at present and in the absence of any local planning policy on 
air quality these  should not be considered to be a determining factor.  
 The Development Management Manager also clarified that:

 The Council did not have a planning policy on air quality.
 Officers considered the fall-back position and the impact this could have to be 

worse.
 Following changes to planning rules and guidance relating to change of use of 

premises as pubs to other uses the pub could be turned into a shop without 
planning permission and this would have a greater impact on the issues than 
the current application.

6



 The size of delivery vehicles could be controlled by a condition placed on the 
planning permission which would restrict the size of lorries to a 10.5m wheel 
base; if articulated or other larger lorries were used then the Council would be 
able to take enforcement action.

 The fall-back position would only allow change of use; any works to the 
entrances and / or exits would need planning permission.

The Committee were concerned that the PCC Transport and Engineering Services 
had objected to the application on the grounds of the safety and free flow of traffic on 
the adjoining public highway.  The Highways Officer explained that they viewed the 
application as the demolition of a building with the construction of a new development 
and therefore viewed the access as being unacceptable whereas he appreciated that 
planning officers would view the application more holistically with regard to legislation 
and calculations.  The Development Management Manager stated that in his opinion 
the correct weight had been given to the fall-back position and he assured the 
Committee they had not disregarded Highway’s concerns but had taken them 
seriously.    Planning Officers considered that the fall-back position should be given a 
lot of weight.  The Highways Officer was not aware of any previous access used in 
the past but informed the Committee that the vehicle access proposed by the 
applicant was for vehicles to give way to pedestrians.

The Committee discussed the application and acknowledged the fall-back position.  
Concerns were raised with regard to the Highways objection and existing traffic 
issues that needed to be addressed; if not this application could potentially 
exacerbate the problems but to refuse the application could mean the potential issue 
of the fall-back position.  Currently delivery vehicles could include articulated HGVs. 
This could be restricted through conditions on the planning permission but the fall-
back position would not have this restriction.  The Committee considered the 
highways safety issue in some detail, some members expressing  concerns about the 
effect of the proposed development on the safety of road users which they 
considered outweighed the fall-back position..

A motion was proposed and seconded to agree that planning permission be refused, 
contrary to officer recommendation.  The motion was carried 8 voting in favour, 2 
abstaining and none voting against.

Application 16/01498/FUL – RESOLVED (8 voted in favour, 2 abstained and none 
voted against) that planning permission is REFUSED for the following reason

The proposed servicing arrangements would represent a worsening beyond the 'fall-
back' position by reason of inadequate vehicle-to-pedestrian and vehicle-to-vehicle 
visibility, and the failure to provide turning within the curtilage of the site.  This would 
result in vehicles manoeuvring within the public highway and exiting without adequate 
visibility, causing an impediment to the free flow of traffic and posing an unacceptable 
danger to the safety of all users of the highway network.  Accordingly, the proposal is 
contrary to Policy CS14 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy 
PP12 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).  

5.2 16/02087/HHFUL - Forge Cottage, 10 The Green, Glinton, Peterborough

The Committee was presented with an application for the demolition of an existing 
garage and erection of an annex.

7



The Principal Development Management Officer provided an overview of the 
application and highlighted a number of key issues within the report and update 
report.

Mrs Krissi Greggs, applicant, addressed the Committee in support to the application.  
There were no questions from Members to Mrs Greggs or to officers.  

The Committee agreed that:
 There was already permission for a garage in place and this in turn could be 

used as a change of use.
 There had been no objections from neighbours.
 The Conservation officer had given his approval

A motion was proposed and seconded to agree that permission be granted, as per 
officer recommendation. The motion was carried unanimously.

RESOLVED: (unanimous) that planning permission is GRANTED subject to the 
conditions set out in the report and update report.

Reasons for the decision:

Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal was acceptable 
having been assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing 
against relevant policies of the development plan and specifically:

 The proposals will not unacceptably harm the character of the Glinton 
Conservation Area, the setting of the adjacent listed St Benedict’s Church of 
the amenity of the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings 

5.3  16/02184/R4FUL - Car Park, Hampton Court, Westwood, Peterborough

Councillor Harper left the room and Councillor Serluca took the Chair for the item.

The Committee was presented with an application for the construction of 16 
affordable dwellings consisting of 4 x 1 bed flats and 8 x 2 bed flats for rent and 4 x 3 
bed houses for shared ownership with associated external works and parking; 
refurbishment and alterations to Hampton Court shopping area; and proposed new 
parking area.

The Development Management Manager provided an overview of the application and 
highlighted a number of key issues within the report and update report.

 Considerable weight should be given to the Principle of Development.
 42 parking spaces would be provided which was in excess of current demand.
 There would be a loss of open space of 665sq m which was not well used and 

did not contain play equipment and therefore was considered to be 
outweighed by the benefit of regeneration.

 The proposal seeks to use permeable materials in all parking and 
access/driveway areas.

Councillor Murphy, Ward Councillor, addressed the Committee in objection of the 
application.  In summary the key points highlighted included:

 Loss of parking spaces will exacerbate parking on green banks; losing a 
whole car park was inappropriate

8



 There were already significant traffic problems due to the expansion of the 
local school.  

 Consultation to introducing resident only parking was currently being 
undertaken.  

 The green space was very valuable and should not be turned into a car park 
but should be retained as it was used for picnicing and contained old people’s 
exercise equipment.

 The development was too intense and too high.
 The Landscaping Officer had also objected

John Wood, local resident, addressed the Committee in objection of the application 
and responded to questions from Members.  In summary the key points highlighted 
included:

 Loss of parking may result in loss of shops and encourage parking issues.  Mr 
Wood believed that residents would not use the new car park behind the 
shops, they would park on the road instead.

 Stafford Hall had previously applied for an extension but was declined due to 
the encroachment into green open space. 

 The land was not considered suitable for the filtering of rain water and water 
butts were not suitable as there were no gardens.

 The build of two proposed houses would substantially reduce nature light to 
others.

 The proposed 1.8m wall would not be in keeping with the intended open plan 
area.

Harry Newton, local resident, addressed the Committee in objection of the application 
and responded to questions from Members.  In summary the key points highlighted 
included:

 The current car park had served the community well for 50 years and allowed 
the shops to be sustainable.

 This would affect Ravesnthorpe residents as they have no bus route and walk 
to Hampton Court to the buses.

 Charlie Swift had referred to the car park 50 years ago as ‘the jewel in the 
crown’ of the estate as it was well used; drop off and pick via taxis and 
coaches.

 The big loss of green space was unacceptable when considering the whole 
estate.

In response to questions from the Committee the Development Management 
Manager clarified that:

 Residents would learn where the new car parking spaces were located as it 
was a local centre used by local residents who knew the area therefore this 
was not a negative issue.

 The car park area was a former airfield with no record of any major 
archaeological finds.  The Council were not aware of a network of tunnels and 
this had not been raised in the consultation.  There would be a condition 
proposed to the watching of progress on the site.

 The car park would take away 665sq m of open space but the proposed 
concourse area would be approximately 1000sq m.

 The report stated that the site, as well as the adjacent Community Centre and 
Health Centre were allocated under the Peterborough Site Allocations DPD 
for comprehensive redevelopment.  Therefore this site was already allocated 
within the Local Plan for comprehensive development and the scheme both 

9



complied and fitted with the Local Plan and was in accordance with current 
policy.

The Committee discussed the application, in summary the key points raised were:
 The site was already allocated within the Local plan and has been agreed 

after general consultation, therefore the Committee would find it difficult to 
refuse.

 Members were aware of the objections but thought these were more a fear of 
change.

 There would be a loss of green space annexing the shops but there were 
other vast open spaces and therefore the loss was considered relatively small 
and would not have an impact.

 This was a worthwhile scheme that would bring much needed high quality 
affordable housing to the area.

 The car park in its current form was considered an eye sore, was under used 
and could only be improved by development but this particular green space 
would be a loss as it had its own specific use and once take away would be 
gone forever.  Members had a duty to protect green areas for future 
generations as they were valuable no matter how small.

 There was a need for more affordable housing in Peterborough, there was a 
large park with other green areas and the drainage issues had been 
addressed.

 Concerns were raised regarding parking on the proposed site as it was felt 
that residents would not utilise the new arrangements and therefore should be 
redesigned.

 Cross Keys would improve the area as both the car park and centre was 
extremely tired therefore the loss of a small green space was outweighed by 
an increase in affordable housing that was desperately needed.

 Some Members considered that the proposal to use all the site for housing 
and not parking was a mistake and therefore housing should be reduced and 
parking increased.

 It was agreed that the loss of green space was regrettable but the whole area 
was in need of redevelopment, it was heavily used and a very valuable asset 
to the community and this would be retained.

A motion was proposed and seconded to agree that planning permission be granted, 
as per officer recommendation.  The motion was carried 5 voting in favour, 3 voting 
against and 1 abstaining.

Application 16/02184/R4FUL – RESOLVED (5 voted in favour, 2 against and 1 
abstained) that planning permission is GRANTED.

Reasons for the decision: 

It was considered that the application be granted subject to the imposition of the 
attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having been assessed in the light of 
all material considerations, including weighing against relevant policies of the 
development plan and specifically:

 the proposal would represent redevelopment of the Local Centre to provide 
new housing, whilst retaining shopping and community facilities, in 
accordance with the vision for the site allocation as set out in Policy SA3.45 of 
the Peterborough Site Allocations DPD (2012);

 the proposal would provide much needed affordable housing to the benefit of 
the wider community, in accordance with Policy CS8 of the Peterborough 

10



Core Strategy DPD (2011);
 whilst the proposed replacement car park and 'bring' site would result in the 

loss of designated Public Open Space, within an area which is presently 
deficient, it is considered that this POS is not high quality and does not afford 
usable play space which is where the deficiency lies. Accordingly, it is 
considered that this limited harm is outweighed by the significant benefit from 
providing affordable housing and securing regeneration of the Local Centre;

 the proposal would secure the re-provision of the existing community 'bring' 
(recycling) point, in accordance with Policy CS28 of the Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough Minerals and Waste Core Strategy DPD (2011);

 the proposal would not result in unacceptable harm to the character, 
appearance or visual amenity of the surrounding area, in accordance with 
Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP2 
of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012);

 adequate parking provision would be made for the proposed housing and 
existing Local Centre (including community facilities) so as to not result in an 
undue impact to the surrounding public highway network, in accordance with 
Policy CS14 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies 
PP12 and PP13 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012);

 the proposal would not result in unacceptable impact to the amenities of 
neighbouring occupants, in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough 
Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP3 of the Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD (2012);

 the proposal would make adequate provision for surface water drainage so as 
to not result in increased flood risk elsewhere, in accordance with Policy 
CS22 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011);

 the proposed car park and relocated 'bring' site would not pose an 
unacceptable danger to users of the adjacent play area, in accordance with 
Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011); 

 the proposed dwellings would provide an adequate level of amenity for future 
occupiers, in accordance with Policy PP4 of the Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD (2012); and

 the proposal would not result in harm to potential undiscovered buried 
heritage assets, in accordance with paragraph 128 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework (2012), Policy CS17 of the Peterborough Core Strategy 
DPD (2011) and Policy PP17 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD 
(2012). 

5.4 6/02191/HHFUL - 195 Broadway, Peterborough, PE1 4DS

The Committee was presented with an application for the demolition of an attached 
single garage and erection of two storey side extension.

The Principal Development Management Officer provided an overview of the 
application and highlighted a number of key issues within the report and update 
report.

In response to questions from the Committee the Development Management 
Manager clarified that:

 The manoeuvring of cars in the rear garden had been considered, it was 
unusual but there were already existing arrangements in place.

11



 The objection received had not been from an immediate neighbour and had 
asked for conditions not a refusal but this was not considered because of the 
historical arrangements.

 Highways would be relied on for addressing the issue of mud.

The Committee discussed the application and agreed the application was an 
innocuous addition and manoeuvring would not be an issue as this already took 
place.

A motion was proposed and seconded to agree that permission be granted, as per 
officer recommendation. The motion was carried unanimously.

RESOLVED: (unanimous) that planning permission is GRANTED subject to the 
conditions set out in the report and update report.

Reasons for the decision:

Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal was acceptable 
having been assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing 
against relevant policies of the development plan and specifically:

 The proposal will not unacceptably harm the character of the Park 
Conservation Area, setting of a locally listed building or the amenity of the 
occupiers of neighbouring dwellings; in accordance with policies CS16 and 
CS17 of the Peterborough Core Strategy (DPD) 2011 and policies PP2, PP3, 
PP12 and PP17 of the Peterborough Planning Policies (DPD) 2012 and 
Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act (Conservation Areas).

Chairman
1.30pm – 4:05pm

12



13



This page is intentionally left blank

14



 1

Planning and EP Committee 14 March 2017          Item No - 1 
 
Application Ref: 17/00003/HHFUL  
 
Proposal: Erection of detached garden building - retrospective (Resubmission) 
 
Site: 2 Cowper Road, New England, Peterborough, PE1 3JX 
Applicant: Mr Singh 
  
Agent: Mr Brian Shemeld 
 
Referred by: Councillor Nadeem  
Reason: Proposal is not contrary to policy as other similar developments have 

been approved elsewhere  
Site visit: 12.09.2016 
 
Case officer: Miss Louise Lovegrove 
Telephone No. 01733 454439 
E-Mail: louise.lovegrove@peterborough.gov.uk 
 
Recommendation: REFUSE   
 

 
1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal 
 
Site and Surroundings 
The application site comprises a two storey detached residential dwelling located on the eastern 
side of Cowper Road.  The property occupies a prominent position within the street scene, as the 
first dwelling on Cowper Road.  It is bound to the south by residential gardens of properties on St 
Pauls Road, and residential development surrounds.  The area is of relatively uniform character, 
with dwellings of similar periods, form and design. 
 
Proposal 
The application seeks planning permission for the construction of a detached outbuilding to the 
rear.  The submitted drawings identify that it would be for use as a gymnasium/play room with a 
shower room.  The dimensions of the building are: 6 metres (width) x 7.5 metres (depth) x 2.5 
metres (eaves height) x 3.9 metres (ridge height).  The footprint of the building stands at 45sqm.   
 
It should be noted that development has been completed and as such, the application is 
retrospective.   
 
This application follows refusal in September 2016 of an earlier identical application for the same 
development (reference 16/01399/HHFUL).  This earlier application was refused for the following 
reasons: 
 
R 1 The proposed detached outbuilding is of a size and scale which fails to respect the 

character and built form of the surrounding locality.  The proposal would occupy 
approximately half of the existing outdoor amenity area associated with the host dwelling, 
far in excess of any developments within the surrounding locality.  This, in combination with 
the significant height, would result in an unduly dominant and obtrusive form of 
development which harms the character, appearance and visual amenity of the surrounding 
area.  The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy 
DPD (2011) and Policy PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

  
 
 
 

15



 2

R 2 The proposed detached outbuilding, by virtue of its height, size and siting, would represent 
an unduly obtrusive and dominant feature to the rear garden area of the adjacent dwelling 
No.4 Cowper Road.  The proposal would result in an unacceptably overbearing impact and, 
given its siting due south of this garden, would result in an unacceptable loss of natural 
daylight throughout the year.  The proposal would therefore result in an unacceptable level 
of harm to the amenities of occupants of this neighbouring dwelling and is therefore 
contrary to Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP3 of 
the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

 
2 Planning History 
 
Reference Proposal Decision Date 
16/01399/HHFUL Detached gym/playroom (part-

retrospective)
Refused  14/09/2016 

 
3 Planning Policy 
 
Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) 
 
CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm  
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, 
address vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable impact 
upon the amenities of neighbouring residents. 
 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012) 
 
PP02 - Design Quality  
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built 
and natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is 
sufficiently robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity. 
 
PP03 - Impacts of New Development  
Permission will not be granted for development which would result in an unacceptable loss of 
privacy, public and/or private green space or natural daylight; be overbearing or cause noise or 
other disturbance, odour or other pollution; fail to minimise opportunities for crime and disorder. 
 
Peterborough Local Plan 2016 to 2036 (Preliminary Draft) 
This document sets out the planning policies against which development will be assessed. It will 
bring together all the current Development Plan Documents into a single document. Consultation 
on this document took place between December 2016 and 9 February 2017. 
  
At this preliminary stage the polices cannot be afforded any weight with the exception of the 
calculation relating to the five year land supply as this is based upon the updated Housing Needs 
Assessment and sites which have planning permission or which are subject to a current 
application. Individual policies are not therefore referred to further in this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16



 3

4 Consultations/Representations 
 
Millfield & New England Residents Planning Sub Group  
No comments received. 
 
Local Residents/Interested Parties  
 
Initial consultations: 8 
Total number of responses: 3 
Total number of objections: 1 
Total number in support: 1 
 
1no. objection has been received from an immediately neighbouring resident on the following 
grounds: 
 We are finding the garden building roof very high as it is blocking our sunlight.  A flatter roof 

would be better. 
 The fencing put up is too high in comparison to the rest of the neighbours.   
 
In addition, 1no. further representation has been received neither objecting to or supporting the 
proposal.  The following however was raised: 
 My concern is that the fence and roof of the building is too high.  As a result, there is a bit of 

obstruction to my garden.  If the roof was flat, I am sure that there wouldn’t be any obstruction.   
 
Councillor Nadeem has expressed his support for the proposal as follows: 
 
My constituents Mr and Mrs Singh would like to use this building for the family use and have no 
intentions to use it for sleeping accommodation or renting for the commercial market.  I would be 
grateful if you consider below examples (provided by the applicant and their agent) when you make 
decision. 
 
Similar examples of approved, detached buildings are: 
 135 Northfield Road 15/01157/HHFUL 
 33 Warbon Avenue 09/00205/FUL 
 9 Springfield Road 15/01094/HHFUL 
 35 Vere Road 01/01288/FUL 
 
There are several examples of similar buildings within our City's boundary which was approved by 
your department. 
 
A further example of a detached, new dwelling rear of 76 Fulbridge Road 06/01049/FUL. This was 
refused by PCC, then won on appeal. 
 
All of the above are less separated from adjoining dwellings than the 2 Cowper Road building. 
Some are far larger, the new dwelling for instance. 
 
The 2 Cowper Road building is located adjacent to the bottom end of gardens on St Paul's Road , 
and Fulbridge Road with separations of 20m plus and 40m plus respectively from the rear of those 
dwellings. The closest dwelling to the 2 Cowper Road building is No.4 Cowper Road the rear wall 
of which is approximately 20m separated. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17



 4

5 Assessment of the planning issues 
 
The main considerations are: 
 Design and impact upon the character and appearance of the surrounding area 
 Neighbour amenity 
 
a) Design and impact upon the character and appearance of the surrounding area 
As detailed in Section 1 above, the application site is located in a prominent position within the 
street scene being the first dwelling upon entering Cowper Road.  To the south, are residential 
gardens and views are possible towards the garden of the application site from the public realm.   
 
It is considered that the building is of considerable size and scale, extending to a depth of 7.5 
metres and height to ridge of 3.9 metres.  Whilst there are examples of detached outbuildings 
within the locality, these are of a far smaller size and scale representative of incidental garden 
buildings.  It is considered that the proposal appears unduly obtrusive and dominant within the 
locality.  It is far larger and taller than any surrounding detached outbuildings and appears 
prominent when viewed from the public realm.  Furthermore, whilst the site within which it is sited 
is of a relatively large size, the proposal fills almost half of the available outdoor amenity area and 
represents a footprint which is more than half of that of the existing main dwellinghouse.   This 
further compounds the building's prominence and incongruous nature within the locality.   
 
On this basis, the development results in unacceptable harm to the character, appearance and 
visual amenity of the surrounding area, and is therefore contrary to Policy CS16 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies 
DPD (2012).   
 
b) Neighbour amenity 
To the south, the building is sited across the entire width of the rear garden serving No.206 St 
Paul's Road.  It is considered that the height of the building, with eaves standing at 0.7 metres 
above an average 1.8 metre high boundary fence, and pitched roof to 3.9 metres overall height, 
results in a prominent feature.  This, to some degree, harms the outlook down the length of the 
garden to this neighbouring property.  However, it is acknowledged that the garden depth to 
No.206 stands at 43 metres and as such, the impact of the building is somewhat diminished.  The 
area adjacent to the proposal is not the immediately private outdoor amenity space and as such, 
the impact upon occupants is considered to be within an acceptable tolerance. 
 
To the rear, the proposal straddles the rear gardens of Nos.5 and 7 Fulbridge Road.  Neither of 
these properties are subject to the full impact of the proposal in terms of its width as it does not 
occupy the full width of either garden (i.e. it can only be seen across half of the width of each 
garden).  Given this off-set, and the depth of gardens (approximately 67.5 metres), it is considered 
that the building does not appear unduly prominent or obtrusive so as to detract from the 
enjoyment of the garden areas.   
 
However, to the north, the building is sited immediately adjacent to the shared boundary with No.4 
Cowper Road.  This garden is not of the same considerable depth, and as such, the building 
occupies the length of half of the garden.  Given its height and depth, it is considered that this 
appears an unduly obtrusive and dominant feature to occupants using this neighbouring garden.  
Furthermore, given that it is sited immediately to the south of this neighbour, considerable levels of 
overshadowing/loss of daylight result.  The development therefore significantly detract from the 
enjoyment of the outdoor amenity area associated with No.4.   
 
On this basis, the development results in an unacceptable level of harm to the amenities of 
neighbouring residents and is therefore contrary to Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy 
DPD (2011) and Policy PP3 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).   
 
 
 

18



 5

c) Other matters 
It is noted that Councillor Nadeem has requested that other examples of similar developments 
across the City be taken into consideration.  This request is noted however it is not considered that 
these approved schemes set a precedent for allowing development which, as above, is considered 
to result in unacceptable harm.  Each planning application must be considered in its own merits, 
taking into account the relationship of the development to its context and surroundings.  None of 
the examples provided by Councillor Nadeem are located within the vicinity of the application site 
and, many are of a far smaller scale than that which is currently proposed.   
 
6 Conclusions 
 
The proposal is unacceptable having been assessed in light of all material considerations, 
including weighing against relevant policies of the development plan and for the specific reasons 
given below. 
 
7 Recommendation 
 
The case officer recommends that Planning Permission is REFUSED for the following reasons: 
  
  
R 1 The detached outbuilding is of a size and scale which fails to respect the character and built 

form of the surrounding locality.  The development occupies approximately half of the 
existing outdoor amenity area associated with the host dwelling, far in excess of any 
developments within the surrounding locality.  This, in combination with the significant 
height, results in an unduly dominant and obtrusive form of development which harms the 
character, appearance and visual amenity of the surrounding area.  The development is 
therefore contrary to Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and 
Policy PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

  
 
R 2 The detached outbuilding, by virtue of its height, size and siting, represents an unduly 

obtrusive and dominant feature to the rear garden area of the adjacent dwelling No.4 
Cowper Road.  The development results in an unacceptably overbearing impact and, given 
its siting due south of this garden, results in an unacceptable loss of natural daylight 
throughout the year.  The detached outbuilding therefore results in an unacceptable level of 
harm to the amenities of occupants of this neighbouring dwelling and is therefore contrary 
to Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP3 of the 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

  
 

19



This page is intentionally left blank

20



21



This page is intentionally left blank

22



 1

Planning and EP Committee 14 March 2017           Item No - 2 
 
Application Ref: 17/00228/HHFUL  
 
Proposal: External wall insulation with rendered finish to the front elevation 
 
Site: 61 Taverners Road, Millfield, Peterborough, PE1 2JP 
Applicant: Mr Cereste 
 Cereste Property Development 
Agent: ARC Survey & Design 
 ARC Survey & Design 
Referred by: Head of Planning Services 
Reason: Applicant is an elected member 
Site visit: 17.02.2017 
 
Case officer: Mr D Jolley 
Telephone No. 01733 453414 
E-Mail: david.jolley@peterborough.gov.uk 
 
Recommendation: GRANT subject to relevant conditions   
 

 
1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal 
 
Site and surroundings 
The application site is a mid-terrace dwelling of brick and tile construction. The dwelling is sited 
directly on the footpath and has a fully enclosed rear garden. 
 
Proposal 
Permission is sought for external insulation to a the front elevation. 
 
2 Planning History 
 
No relevant planning history 
 
 
3 Planning Policy 
 
Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) 
 
CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm  
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, 
address vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable impact 
upon the amenities of neighbouring residents. 
 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012) 
 
PP02 - Design Quality  
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built 
and natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is 
sufficiently robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity. 
 
 
 

23



 2

4 Consultations/Representations 
 
  
No comments received 
 
Local Residents/Interested Parties  
 
Initial consultations: 3 
Total number of responses: 0 
Total number of objections: 0 
Total number in support: 0 
 
No representations have been received in relation to the proposal. 
 
5 Assessment of the planning issues 
 
The main consideration is; 
 
The impact of the proposal on the character of the area 
 
A number of other dwellings along this part of Taverners Road have been rendered or externally 
insulated in a similar fashion as proposed here, as such render/external insulation is part of the 
established character of the area. Most of these other rendered dwellings have lost their original 
decorative features and the result has been detrimental to the character of the wider area.  
 
The front elevation of the dwelling contains architectural features worthy of retention, including a 
decorative lintels above the windows and front door and a decorative brick course at eave level. It 
is important to retain these elements as they make contribution towards the character of the area. 
The plans show that the lintels are to be covered by the render, therefore a condition will be 
appended to the permission requiring these features to be recreated. Recreation of the stone 
lintels above the door and windows has been undertaken at number 51 Taverners Road to good 
effect. 
 
The applicant has proposed cream render. This is an acceptable colour choice that will not appear 
incongruous given the character of the surrounding area. 
 
In light of the above it is therefore considered that the proposal will not unacceptably harm the 
character of the area. The presence of external insulation/render has become part of the 
established character of the area and the proposal is unlikely to appear incongruous within the 
street scene. 
 
N.B. Application 17/00229/HHFUL proposes the external insulation of the adjacent property, 
number 59 Taverners Road. 
 
6 Conclusions 
 
 
Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having been 
assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against relevant policies of 
the development plan and specifically: 
- The proposals will not unacceptably harm the character of the area. In accordance with policy 
CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy (DPD) 2011 and policy PP2 of the Peterborough 
Planning Policies (DPD) 2012. 
 
 
 
 

24



 3

7 Recommendation 
 
The Director of Growth and Regeneration recommends that Planning Permission is GRANTED 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
  
  
 
C 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 

the date of this permission. 
   
 Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 

amended). 
  
 
C 2 The development shall be carried out in accordance with drawing; 1632/PL1 rev B. 
        
 Reason for the avoidance of doubt. 
  
 
C 3 Notwithstanding the approved drawings, the stone lintel above the front door and stone 

window lintels shall be replicated and the decorative brick detail at eaves level shall be 
retained and left uncovered. 

      
 Reason: For the Local Planning Authority to ensure a satisfactory external appearance, in 

accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy 
PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

  
 
C 4 The render shall be cream or white in colour. 
        
 Reason: For the Local Planning Authority to ensure a satisfactory external appearance, in 

accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy 
PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

  
  
 

25



This page is intentionally left blank

26



27



This page is intentionally left blank

28



 1

Planning and EP Committee 14 March 2017          Item No -  3
  
 
Application Ref: 17/00229/HHFUL  
 
Proposal: External wall insulation with rendered finish to the front elevation 
 
Site: 59 Taverners Road, Millfield, Peterborough, PE1 2JP 
Applicant: Mr Cereste 
 Cereste Property Development 
Agent: ARC Survey & Design 
 ARC Survey & Design 
Referred by: Head of Planning Services 
Reason: Applicant is an elected member.  
Site visit: 17.02.2017 
 
Case officer: Mr D Jolley 
Telephone No. 01733 453414 
E-Mail: david.jolley@peterborough.gov.uk 
 
Recommendation: GRANT subject to relevant conditions   
 

 
1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal 
 
Site and surroundings 
The application site is a mid-terrace dwelling of brick and tile construction. The dwelling is sited 
directly on the footpath and has a fully enclosed rear garden. 
 
Proposal 
Permission is sought for external insulation to at the front elevation. 
 
2 Planning History 
 
No relevant planning history 
 
 
3 Planning Policy 
 
Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) 
 
CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm  
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, 
address vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable impact 
upon the amenities of neighbouring residents. 
 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012) 
 
PP02 - Design Quality  
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built 
and natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is 
sufficiently robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity. 
 
 

29



 2

 
4 Consultations/Representations 
 
  
No comments received 
 
Local Residents/Interested Parties  
 
Initial consultations: 3 
Total number of responses: 0 
Total number of objections: 0 
Total number in support: 0 
 
No representations have been received in relation to the proposal. 
 
5 Assessment of the planning issues 
 
The main consideration is; 
 
The impact of the proposal on the character of the area 
 
A number of other dwellings along this part of Taverners Road have been rendered or externally 
insulated in a similar fashion as proposed here, as such render/external insulation is part of the 
established character of the area. Most of these other rendered dwellings have lost their original 
decorative features and the result has been detrimental to the character of the wider area.  
 
The front elevation of the dwelling contains architectural features worthy of retention, including a 
decorative lintel above the side passage and a decorative brick course at eave level. It is important 
to retain these elements as they make contribution towards the character of the area. Therefore a 
condition will be appended to the permission requiring these features to be preserved. 
 
The applicant has proposed cream render. This is an acceptable colour choice that will not appear 
incongruous given the character of the surrounding area. 
 
In light of the above it is therefore considered that the proposal will not unacceptably harm the 
character of the area. The presence of external insulation/render has become part of the 
established character of the area and the proposal is unlikely to appear incongruous within the 
street scene. 
 
The submitted plans show a replacement shop front, this does not form part of the application and 
has not been evaluated as part of the consideration of this application. 
 
N.B. N.B. Application 17/00228/HHFUL proposes the external insulation of the adjacent property, 
number 61 Taverners Road. 
 
6 Conclusions 
 
 
Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having been 
assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against relevant policies of 
the development plan and specifically: 
- The proposals will not unacceptably harm the character of the area. In accordance with policy 
CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy (DPD) 2011 and policy PP2 of the Peterborough 
Planning Policies (DPD) 2012. 
 
 
 

30



 3

7 Recommendation 
 
The Director of Growth and Regeneration recommends that Planning Permission is GRANTED 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
  
  
 
C 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 

the date of this permission. 
  
 Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 

amended). 
  
 
C 2 The development shall be carried out in accordance with drawing; 1632/PL2. 
       
 Reason for the avoidance of doubt. 
  
 
C 3 Notwithstanding the approved drawings and for the avoidance of doubt, the stone lintel 

above the side passage and the decorative brick detail at eaves level shall be retained and 
left uncovered. 

       
 Reason: For the Local Planning Authority to ensure a satisfactory external appearance, in 

accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy 
PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

  
 
C 4 The render shall be cream or white in colour. 
       
 Reason: For the Local Planning Authority to ensure a satisfactory external appearance, in 

accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy 
PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

  
  
 

31



This page is intentionally left blank

32



  

 
PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROTECTION COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM  

14 March 2017 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Cabinet Members responsible: Councillor Hiller - Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, 
Housing and Economic Development 
 

Contact Officer: 

Reporting Officer: 

Lee Collins (Development Management Manager) 

Louise Lovegrove (Senior Development Management Officer) 

Tel. 454421 
Tel. 454439 

 
PLANNING APPEALS QUARTERLY REPORT ON PERFORMANCE DECEMBER 2016 TO 
FEBRUARY 2017 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Director of Growth and Regeneration  Deadline date : March 2017 

 
That Committee notes past performance and outcomes. 

 
1. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

It is useful for Committee to look at the Planning Service’s appeals performance and 
identify if there are any lessons to be learnt from the decisions made. This will help inform 
future decisions and potentially reduce costs. This report is presented under the terms of 
the Council’s constitution Part 3, delegations section 2 para 2.6.1.4.  
 
This report covers the period from 1 December 2016 to 28 February 2017 and a list of all 
appeal decisions received can be found at Appendix 1.   
 
For the purposes of ‘lesson learning’, these update reports will normally cover a selected 
number of cases in detail whereby the Local Planning Authority (LPA) has lost its case.  
Attention will be paid to the difference in assessment of the selected schemes between the 
LPA and Planning Inspector.  In this instance, no case study is included as the LPA has 
won all appeal decisions.   

 
2. TIMESCALE. 
 

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

NO If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting 

n/a 

 
3. MAIN BODY OF REPORT 
 

3.1 Appeal Performance  
In the period of 1 December 2016 to 28 February 2017, a total of 11 appeal decisions have 
been received.  This number is broadly similar to the corresponding periods in 2015/16 and 
2014/15, whereby 7 and 15 appeal decisions were received respectively.  All of the appeals 
related to the refusal of planning permission.   
 
Of the 11 decisions received, all cases were dismissed by the Planning Inspector appointed 
by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government (100%).  None of the 
decisions were subject to an award of costs either for, or against, the Council.  This 
represents an improvement of performance when compared to the previous quarter of 
2016, whereby 86% were dismissed and 14% allowed.  This performance represents an 
improvement from the same quarter of 2015/16, whereby 3 were dismissed (43%) and 4 

33



allowed (57%), and the same quarter of 2014, whereby 9 were dismissed (60%) and 6 
allowed (40%).   
 
The improvement in appeals performance in comparison to previous years suggests that 
the quality of decision-making has improved over the past 2 years.   
 
Of the planning application decisions appealed during this quarter, all resulted from Officer 
delegated decisions. This is not unusual given the relatively low number of applications 
which are referred for determination by Members.    
 
The Government has recently announced that it will be looking at the quality of Local 
Authority decision making for major applications and non-major applications.  As such, as 
of April 2018, the Council will be monitored on all appeals performance.  The measure to be 
applied relates to the percentage of appeals lost (allowed against the Authority’s decision) 
as a percentage of the total number of decisions made and the Government has set the 
target at no more than 10%.   
 
An annual statement detailing the performance against this target will be provided each 
year.  This will be presented for 2016/17 in the next Committee Report.  

 
4.  IMPLICATIONS 
  
4.1 Legal Implications – There are no legal implications relating to this report on 

performance, although the planning/appeal processes themselves must have due regard to 
legal considerations and requirements. 

 
Financial Implications – This report itself does not have any financial implications 
 
Human Rights Act – This report itself has no human rights implications but the 
planning/appeals processes have due regard to human rights issues. 

 
Human Resources – This report itself has no human resources implications.   

 
ICT – This report itself has no ICT implications.   

 
Property – This report itself has no Property implications. 

 
Contract Services – This report itself has no Contract Services implications.  
 
Equality & Diversity – This report itself has no Equality and Diversity Implications, 
although the planning/appeals processes have due regard to such considerations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

34



Appendix 1 – Appeals Performance from 01.12.2016 to 28.02.2017 

 

Application 
reference  Address  Proposal  Officer 

Recommendation 

Committee 
Decision / 

Date 
Reasons for Refusal  Appeal 

Procedure 

Appeal 
Decision / 

Date 

Costs 
Decision  Inspector’s Reasons 

16/00348/FUL  Lazyacre 
Werrington 
Bridge Road 
Milking Nook 
Peterborough 
PE6 7QF 

Proposed day 
room 

Refusal  N/A  1. Size, layout and design of the day 
room would be tantamount to a 
permanent dwelling.  Building would 
be visible from outside the site and 
represent an intrusive feature in the 
open countryside – contrary to CS9 
and CS20 

Written 
Representations 

Dismissed 
31.01.2017 

N/A 
 

- Building would be a substantial and 
significant structure that would have the 
appearance of a bungalow.  It would be 
visible from outside the site and a further 
incursion of built form into the relatively flat 
rural landscape.  This would erode and 
harm, the character and appearance of the 
countryside. 

- The personal circumstances of the Applicant 
are not considered sufficient to outweigh 
the harm identified.  

16/00260/FUL  1A Brassey 
Close 
New England 
Peterborough 
PE1 2AZ 

30 bedroom 
student 
accommodation, 
creation of 19 x 
parking spaces & 
all associated 
works ‐ Re‐
submission 

Refusal  N/A  1. Layout, scale and mass of 
development would be tantamount to 
10 separate dwellings which would 
appear cramped and contrived, 
constituting overdevelopment – 
contrary to CS16 and PP2. 

2. Unacceptable level of amenity for 
future occupiers owing to lack of 
outdoor space and overshadowing by 
trees – contrary to PP4. 

3. Unacceptable overbearing impact to 
existing residents – contrary to PP3. 

4. Substandard vehicular access due to 
insufficient visibility splays – contrary 
to CS14 and PP12. 

5.  Insufficient parking provision – 
contrary to PP13. 

6. Insufficient cycle parking provision – 
contrary to PP13. 

7. Harm to trees of key amenity value in 
the area – contrary to PP16. 

Written 
Representations  

Dismissed 
16.12.2016 

N/A  - Although proposal is for student 
accommodation, it would take the form of 
10no. dwellings.  Appellant has offered little 
supporting evidence to demonstrate that 
student accommodation is require din the 
area.  Therefore not satisfied that the 
buildings would be used for student 
accommodation.   Because of this, proposal 
would appear cramped and out of keeping 
with the character of the area. 

- Existing access to the site is narrow and the 
proposal would lead to a considerable 
increase in traffic movement to/from the 
site.  The access is wholly inadequate and 
would pose a danger to highway safety.  In 
addition, parking would be insufficient to 
meet the needs of the development.  

- Satisfied that the distance to existing 
properties would be sufficient and would 
not significantly harm occupant amenity.  

15/01256/OUT  34 Uffington 
Road 
Barnack 
Stamford 
PE9 3DU 

New three bed 
detached house 
in rear garden 

Refusal  N/A  1. Site is in a prominent location 
adjacent to the village boundary.  
Proposed curtilage is 
uncharacteristically small and 
dwelling would result in incongruous, 
isolated development at odds with 
the character of the area – contrary to 
CS16, PP2 and Design & Development 
in Selected Villages SPD.  

2. Proposal has no connection with 
existing made‐up road, meaning safe 
and convenient access cannot be 
provided – contrary to Cs14 and PP12.  

Written 
Representations 

Dismissed 
31.01.2017 

N/A  - Little evidence presented as to how the 
dwelling would be accessed.  Whilst this 
would be a reserved matter, without 
sufficient evidence, unable to conclude that 
the dwelling would be safely accessed.  

-   Whilst linear form of development is 
noted, backland development has already 
taken place.  Proposal would not be readily 
visible, with only glimpsed views possible.  
As such, the character and appearance of 
the village would not be significantly 
harmed.  

35



Appendix 1 – Appeals Performance from 01.12.2016 to 28.02.2017 

 

16/01219/HHFUL  27 ‐ 29 
Dogsthorpe 
Road 
Peterborough 
PE1 3AD 

Detached annex 
to the rear 

Refusal  N/A  1. Size, scale and siting of proposal in 
conjunction with existing 
development on the site, would 
represent a cramped form of 
development which harms the 
character of the locality – contrary to 
CS16 and PP2.  

2. Proposal would infill almost the entire 
outdoor amenity area which would 
leave both dwellings with insufficient 
garden space – contrary to PP4.  

Written 
Representations 

Dismissed 
31.01.2017 

N/A  - Although surrounding area is not entirely 
residential, and site is set aainst a backdrop 
of larger structures, the absence of relief 
from the built form would appear 
incongruously cramped and intensive.  This 
would harm the character of the area.  

- The building would occupy almost all of the 
remaining garden space to the dwellings 
which fail to provide occupants with a well‐
designed and private amenity space 
commensurate with the scale of 
development.     

15/01837/FUL  20 Crown Street 
New England 
Peterborough 
PE1 3HY 

Change of use 
from tyre fitting 
centre to car 
wash 

Refusal  N/A  1. Intensification of number of vehicles 
using a substandard access (width) 
which would pose a danger to 
highway safety – contrary to CS14 and 
PP12. 

2. Increase in vehicular traffic adjacent 
to a residential dwelling which will 
give rise to unacceptable noise and 
disturbance to occupants – contrary 
to PP3.   

Written 
Representations 

Dismissed  
31.01.2017 

N/A  - Given the close proximity fop the 
neighbouring dwelling to the access, 
occupants would be very aware of increased 
traffic movements due to noise/general 
disturbance.  This would harm their 
amenity. 

- Proposal would impede the free flow of 
traffic on the highway as cars would be 
unable to pass one another. This would pose 
a safety risk.    

16/00841/HHFUL 
 
And  
 
16/00878/LBC 

14 Maxey Road 
Helpston 
Peterborough 
PE6 7DP 

Alterations and 
extension 

Refusal  N/A  1. Extension is not sufficient subservient 
and would become a dominant 
feature to the Grade II Listed Building 
– contrary to Section 66(1) of Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas Act, 
CS17, PP2, PP17 and NPPF.   

Written 
Representations 

Dismissed  
09.02.2017 

N/A  - Given the small plot size, the extension 
would lead to a cramped, overdevelopment 
of the site.  This would erode the historical 
architectural features of the rear building 
elevation.  No harm would result to the 
Conservation Area but harm would result to 
the special interest of the listed building.   

16/00718/LBC 
 
And 
 
16/00717/HFUL 

14 Maxey Road 
Helpston 
Peterborough 
PE6 7DP 

Formation of two 
rear facing 
thatched 
eyebrow 
windows 

Refusal  N/A  1. Proposed dormers are oversized and 
not characteristic of historic thatched 
cottages in the area, harming 
character and appearance of the 
Listed Building ‐ contrary to Section 
66(1) of Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas Act, Cs17, PP2, 
PP17 and NPPF.   

Written 
Representations 

Dismissed  
09.02.2017 

N/A  - The proposed dormers would introduce an 
architecturally inconsistent feature that 
would compromise the historic legibility of 
the building.     

16/00262/FUL  1371 Lincoln 
Road 
Peterborough 
PE4 6LT 

Proposed 2 bed 
bungalow 

Refusal  N/A  1. Proposed dwelling would not confirm 
with the built form of its surroundings 
and would appear incongruous within 
the streetscene.  It would erode an 
important green buffer between the 
two residential areas – contrary to 
CS16 and PP2.    

Written 
Representations 

Dismissed  
07.02.2017 

N/A  - Even though the proposed dwelling would 
be similar in appearance to the other 
dwellings nearby and positioned roughly in 
line with No 2 Salisbury Road, the proposal 
would introduce a significant bulk of 
development at the entrance to Salisbury 
Road. This would be harmful to the overall 
character and appearance of the area. 

36



Appendix 1 – Appeals Performance from 01.12.2016 to 28.02.2017 

 

16/01684/ADV  Land To North 
Of 57 Priestgate 
Bourges 
Boulevard 
Peterborough 

Freestanding 
double sided LED 
digital 
advertisement 
display 

Refusal  N/A  1. Advertisement will harm the 
significance of the City Centre 
Conservation Area du rot its size, 
scale, design, siting, materials, 
illumination and changing imagery – 
contrary to CS17 and PP17. 

2. Advertisement will be incongruous to 
the visual amenity of the general 
streetscene – contrary to CS16 and 
PP2. 

3. Advertisement would cause a danger 
to users of the public highway 
through distraction – contrary to CS14 
and PP12.     

Fast Track Appeal  Dismissed  
17.02.2017 

N/A  - Owing to the changing imagery, size and 
location of the advert, it would necessitate 
prolonged or multiple views.  This would 
increase the likelihood of collisions at the 
roundabout and would pose an 
unacceptable danger to safety.  

- The site does not form a significant element 
of the setting of the Conservation Area and 
its special character is not experienced in 
close proximity to the site.  Therefore, no 
unacceptable harm would result to its 
setting.  

- However, the advertisement would be 
garish and excessive which would give rise 
to significant harm to the character and 
appearance of the area.  

 

37



T
his page is intentionally left blank

38


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meeting Held on 24 January 2017
	5.1 17/00003/HHFUL - 2 Cowper Road, New England, Peterborough, PE1 3JX
	5.1  17 0003 HHFUL 2 Cowper Road Final Report

	5.2 17/00228/HHFUL - 61 Taverners Road, Millfield, Peterborough, PE1 2JP
	5.2  17 00228 HHFUL 61 Taverners Road Final Report

	5.3 17/00229/HHFUL - 59 Taverners Road, Millfield, Peterborough, PE1 2JP
	5.3  17 00229 HHFUL 59 Taverners Road Final Report

	6 PLANNING APPEALS QUARTERLY REPORT ON PERFORMANCE DECEMBER 2016 TO FEBRUARY 2017
	6.  Appendix 1 FINAL


